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Trinity Cathgdra], constructed from 1880-1883, is a beautiful and well-

CONDITION

breserved example of the Late Gothic Revival style of architecture. The
masonry walls, stonevbar tracery, monochrome coloring, uncomplicated plan and
~[the Eng]ish Perpendicular influence, all reflect the Late Gothic Revival
style. Built of Tight-gray natural textured stone, it basically follows the
cruciform plan with the addition of a single tower. Serving as the main en-
trance, this tower is extended from the building and placed near the'corner

| of the block so it is easily visible along the street from both directions.
Every door, window, and gable is outlined in smoothly-dressed gray stone
which is the same material as in the mu1]ions and tracery of the windows.
Stone or metal crosses occur in a variety of places over the building, such
{as atop buttresses, gables, and the tower. The exterior has remained un-
changed over the years and has recently been sandblasted to show the original
color. In the last few years-the:small lawn has been landscaped to provide a
peaceful area for sitting and walking and also enhances the cathedral.

The overall désign and details of the interior is concerned with a
Gothic appearance. The plan gives the semblance of being cruciform but the
transepts extend only to the odter aisle wall. Each transept holds a large,
stained-glass window; a side entrahce is located in the north transept.
Wooden beams vault straight across the ceiling, not utilizing the traditional
Gothic vault forms. The T1ine of the wooden beams is carried to the floor by
pilasters on the clerestory level and piers on the nave. The most tradi-
tibna] Gothic featureé of the cathedral are the fine wood carving in the
chancel area and the many colorful stained-glass windows throughout the
building.

The chancel area contains the most outstanding craftsmanship in the
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cathedral. Five bronze panels by Sibell of New York depicting scenes from the
1ife of Christ decorate the woeden altar and were a gift from J. M. Woolworth,
chancellor of the diocese at the time of the cathedral's construction. The
wooden screen behind the altar is carved in the ornate Gothic pointed arch
design, which is a common motif throughout the church. A mosaic in honor of
Bishop Robert H. Clarkson, who was in office when the cathedral was built, is
on the floor directly in front of the altar. The thrones of the bishop and
dean are carved from oak, each ornamented with an elaborate cross-gabled roof.
Carvings pierce each gable and a finial tops each point. The chairs are car-
ved with the official coat of arms of the Province of Canterbury, England, and
the Diocese of Nebraska. : The credence on the wall just south of the altar al-
so has an ornately carved roof. The choir pews are original although a few
have been removed to create a:larger center aisle. An ornately carved chancel
railing of oak, also a memorial gift, is still maintained. |

Fine craftsmanship is small details greatly enhances the cathedral.
Beautiful brass work decorates the chancel area in the form of the eagle lec-
tern, the altar cross, the Bible markers, the candelabra and the altar rail.
The pulpit is encircled at its base by statues of Christ and the four evangi-
Tists carved from wood. The white baptismal font was carved from a design by
Henry G. Harrison, the architect of the cathedral, and presented to the church
as a memorial.

The many stained-glass windows, all of which are gifts, give the church

much of its rich Gothic character. The three largest windows, in the north

and south transepts and at the west end, show the English Perpendicular style
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influence in the curvilinear bar tracery. The small clerestory windows desi-
gned with geometric patterns number twenty-eight in all and were given by the
other churches in the diocese with the name and city of each church in the
center of a window. Thirteen stained-glass windows are in the chancel érea
each depicting Christ or one of the twelve apostles. The ten nave windows
were memorials to individual people and the scenesAreflect that person. Three
Tiffany -windows on the south side of the nave were given by the W. B. Ogden
family of New York City. Several memorial plaques in honor of various clergy
and lay people have been placed on the walls of the nave.

Alterations have been few in the long 1life of the cathedral. Only minor
changes such as new 1ighting, a new organ, carpeting and fresh paint have been
added. Otherwise the original design and furnishings have been maintained and
restored when needed to preserve the beautiful Gothic character of the cathed-

ral.
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to-restore the present structure and not move to a more residential neighbor-

Trinity Parish was organized in the eafly days of Omaha. The church
was founded and the vestry was elected on April 12, 1856, two years after
the village of Omaha w&s first settled. The first Episcopal service in
Nebraska was held the next day. In 1868 Trinity was designated the bi-
shop's church, and since that time the bishop has had the right to direct
the ritua],‘preach when in the city, and use the church for his offices.
With this addéd prestige, Trinity Church was named a cathedral. This
parish has been influential in the religious and social growth of eastern
Nebraska since the early days of Omaha.. The present building was com-

pleted in 1883 and is located in downtown Omaha. The church vestry elected

hood, as many churches have done. Among the members of the congregation
were many important pioneer names of Omaha. The cathedral has always felt
a nged to provide leadership in its diocese. Being the first church in its
area, it was responsib]e‘for helping to establish many churches in eastern
Nebraska and to found a school, quwnel] Hall, presently named Brownell-
Talbot School.

The cathedral building is a beautiful example of Late Gothic Revival
architecture with emphasis on the English Perpendicular style of Gothic.

Even though it is a relatively small church, the design, the workmanship,
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the attention to detail, and the excellent maintenance have combined to create
an impressive architectural space. The architect is Henry G. Harrison (1813-
1895), an Englishman who is most known for his plans for Garden City, Long
Island, of which only the Memorial Cathedral was built. Trinity Cathedral ié
believed to have used the same plans as the Memorial Cathedral but on a smaller
scale. The supervising architect was}A1fred R. Dufrene of Omaha, for Harrison

did not visit the site.
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